II. 37 Notices of Commencement Received From: 10/01/98 to 10/30/98—Continued

Case No.	Received Date	Commence- ment/Import Date	Chemical
P-98-0802	10/06/98	10/01/98	 (G) Isocyanate-fuctionalized polyurethane polymer* (G) Styrene/ acrylate copolymer (G) Copolymer of styrene and acrylic esters (G) Acrylic latex (G) Alkyd resin (G) Acrylate copolymer
P-98-0814	10/20/98	10/14/98	
P-98-0820	10/13/98	09/13/98	
P-98-0833	10/02/98	09/09/98	
P-98-0874	10/30/98	10/14/98	
P-98-0945	10/30/98	10/13/98	

1P-98-0621 was inadvertantly omitted from the document of July 15 to 31, 1998, Notices of Commencement, but is now included.

List of Subjects

Environmental protection, Premanufacture notices.

Dated: November 18, 1998.

Oscar Morales,

Acting Director, Information Management Division, Office of Pollution Prevention and Toxics.

[FR Doc. 98-31679 Filed 11-27-98; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 6560-50-F

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

[FRL-6189-5]

Proposed Administrative Penalty Assessment and Opportunity to Comment

AGENCY: Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

ACTION: Notice of Proposed Assessment of Clean Water Act Class II Administrative Penalty and opportunity to comment.

SUMMARY: EPA is providing notice of a proposed administrative penalty for alleged violations of the Clean Water Act. EPA is also providing notice of opportunity to comment on the proposed penalty.

EPA is authorized under section 311(b)(6) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6), to assess a civil penalty after providing the person subject to the penalty notice of the proposed penalty and the opportunity for a hearing, and after providing interested persons public notice of the proposed penalty and a reasonable opportunity to comment on its issuance. Under section 311(b)(6), any owner, operator, or person in charge of a vessel, onshore facility, or offshore facility in violation of the regulations issued under section 311(j) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1321(j), ("Oil Pollution Prevention Regulations" 40 CFR part 112) may be assessed a civil penalty of up to \$137,500 by EPA in a "Class II" administrative penalty proceeding.

Class II proceedings under section 311(b)(6) of the Clean Water Act are conducted in accordance with the "Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation and Suspension of Permits at 40 CFR part 22 ("part 22")."

Pursuant to section 311(b)(6)(C) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6)(C), EPA is providing notice of the following proposed Class II penalty proceeding initiated by the Superfund Division, U.S. EPA, Region 9, 75 Hawthorne Street, San Francisco, CA 94105:

In the Matter of Speedy's Convenience, Inc., Docket No. OPA-09-98-05, filed September 30, 1998; proposed penalty \$137,500; for violations of the Oil Pollution Prevention Regulations (40 CFR Part 112) at the oil storage, processing and distribution facility located at Lupton, AZ.

The procedures by which the public may submit written comments on a proposed Class II penalty order or participate in a Class II penalty proceeding are set forth in part 22. The deadline for submitting public comment on a proposed Class II order is thirty days after issuance of public notice.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Persons wishing to receive a copy of part 22, review the Complaint or other documents filed by the parties in this proceeding, comment upon the proposed penalty assessment, or participate in any hearing that may be held, should contact the Danielle Carr, Regional Hearing Clerk (RC–1), U.S. EPA, Region 9, 75 Hawthorne Street, San Francisco, CA 94105, (415) 744– 1391. Documents filed as part of the public record in this proceeding are available for inspection during business hours at the office of the Regional Hearing Clerk.

In order to provide opportunity for public comment, EPA will not take final action in this proceeding prior to thirty days after issuance of this document. Dated: September 30, 1998.

Nancy Lindsay,

Associate Director, Superfund Division, Region IX. [FR Doc. 98–31801 Filed 11–27–98; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 6560–50–M

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

[FRL-6189-6]

Proposed Administrative Penalty Assessment and Opportunity to Comment

AGENCY: Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

ACTION: Notice of Proposed Assessment of Clean Water Act Class II Administrative Penalty and opportunity to comment.

SUMMARY: EPA is providing notice of a proposed administrative penalty for alleged violations of the Clean Water Act. EPA is also providing notice of opportunity to comment on the proposed penalty.

EPA is authorized under section 311(b)(6) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6), to assess a civil penalty after providing the person subject to the penalty notice of the proposed penalty and the opportunity for a hearing, and after providing interested persons public notice of the proposed penalty and a reasonable opportunity to comment on its issuance. Under section 311(b)(6), any owner, operator, or person in charge of a vessel, onshore facility, or offshore facility from which oil is discharged in violation of section 311(b)(3) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(3) may be administratively assessed a civil penalty of up to \$137,500 by EPA in a "Class II" administrative penalty proceeding. Class II proceedings under section 311(b)(6) of the Clean Water Act are conducted in accordance with the "Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the

Revocation and Suspension of Permits at 40 CFR part 22 ("part 22")."

Pursuant to section 311(b)(6)(C) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1321(b)(6)(C), EPA is providing public notice of the following proposed Class II penalty proceeding initiated by the Oil Program, Superfund Division, U.S.EPA, Region 9, 75 Hawthorne Street, San Francisco, CA 94105:

In the Matter of Kinder Morgan Energy Partners, LP/Santa Fe Pacific Pipeline Partners, LP (Santa Fe); Docket Number OPA-09-98-01, filed September 29, 1998; proposed penalty \$50,000.00; for a violation of 311(b) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1321(b), at Santa Fe's pipeline Rockin, California to Sparks, Nevada 5 miles west of Highway 80 near Donner Summit, California.

The procedures by which the public may submit written comments on a proposed Class II penalty order or participate in a Class II penalty proceeding are set forth in part 22. The deadline for submitting public comment on a proposed Class II order is thirty days after issuance of public notice.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Persons wishing to receive a copy of part 22, review the Complaint or other documents filed by the parties in this proceeding, comment upon the proposed penalty assessment, or participate in any hearing that may be held, should contact the Danielle Carr, Regional Hearing Clerk (RC-1), U.S. EPA, Region 9, 75 Hawthorne Street, San Francisco, CA 94105, (415) 744-1391. Documents filed as part of the public record in this proceeding are available for inspection during business hours at the office of the Regional Hearing Clerk.

In order to provide opportunity for public comment, EPA will not take final action in this proceeding prior to thirty days after issuance of this document.

Dated: September 25, 1998.

Michael T. Feeley,

Deputy Director, Superfund Division, Region IX.

[FR Doc. 98–31802 Filed 11–27–98; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 6560–50–M

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

[Report No. 2307]

Petitions for Reconsideration and Clarification of Action in Rulemaking Proceedings

November 19, 1998.

Petitions for reconsideration and clarification have been filed in the

Commission's rulemaking proceedings listed in this Public Notice and published pursuant to 47 CFR Section 1.429(e). The full text of these documents are available for viewing and copying in Room 239, 1919 M Street, NW, Washington, DC or may be purchased from the Commission's copy contractor, ITS, Inc. (202) 857–3800. Oppositions to these petitions must be filed by December 15, 1998. See Section 1.4(b)(1) of the Commission's rules (47 CFR 1.4(b)(1)). Replies to an opposition must be filed within 10 days after the time for filing oppositions has expired.

Subject: Application of BellSouth Corporation, BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc., and BellSouth Long Distance, Inc. Pursuant to Section 271 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, to Provide In-Region InterLATA Services to Louisiana (CC Docket No. 98–121).

Number of Petitions Filed: 3.

Federal Communications Commission.

Magalie Roman Salas,

Secretary.

[FR Doc. 98–31688 Filed 11–27–98; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 6712–01–M

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

Ocean Freight Forwarder License; Applicants

Notice is hereby given that the following applicants have filed with the Federal Maritime Commission applications for licenses as ocean freight forwarders pursuant to section 19 of the Shipping Act of 1994 (46 U.S.C. app. 1718 and 46 CFR part 510).

Persons knowing of any reason why any of the following applicants should not receive a license are requested to contact the Office of Freight Forwarders, Federal Maritime Commission, Washington, DC 20573.

U.S.A. Transport, 330 Broadway, Hillsdale, NJ 07642, Neal Freedman, Sole Proprietor.

Dated: November 23, 1998.

Joseph C. Polking,

Secretary.

[FR Doc 98–31695 Filed 11–27–98; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 6730–01–M

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

Sunshine Act Meeting

AGENCY HOLDING THE MEETING: Federal Maritime Commission.

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 A.M.—December 2, 1998.

PLACE: 800 North Capitol Street, N.W., First Floor Hearing Room, Washington, DC.

STATUS: A portion of the meeting will be open to the public and the remainder of the meeting will be closed.

MATTER(S) TO BE CONSIDERED: The Open Portion of the Meeting; 1. Proposed Rules (46 CFR) Implementing the Ocean Shipping Reform Act, relating to Agreements, Marine Terminal Operator Schedules, and Ocean Transportation Intermediaries.

The Portion Closed to the Public: 1. Brazilian Maritime Policies Affecting U.S.-Brazil Trades.

CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE INFORMATION: Joseph C. Polking, Secretary, (202) 523–5725.

Joseph C. Polking,

Secretary. [FR Doc. 98–31862 Filed 11–24–98; 4:40 pm] BILLING CODE 6730–01–M

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Sunshine Act Meeting

AGENCY HOLDING THE MEETING: Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, December 2, 1998.

PLACE: Marriner S. Eccles Federal Reserve Board Building, 20th and C Streets, NW, Washington, DC 20551. STATUS: Closed.

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED: 1. Personnel actions (appointments, promotions,

actions (appointments, promotions, assignments, reassignments, and salary actions) involving individual Federal Reserve System employees.

2. Any matters carried forward from a previously announced meeting.

CONTACT PERSON FOR MORE INFORMATION: Lynn S. Fox, Assistant to the Board; 202–452–3204.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: You may call 202–452–3206 beginning at approximately 5 p.m. two business days before the meeting for a recorded announcement of bank and bank holding company applications scheduled for the meeting; or you may contact the Board's Web site at http:// www.federalreserve.gov for an electronic announcement that not only lists applications, but also indicates procedural and other information about the meeting.

Dated: November 25, 1998.

Robert deV. Frierson,

Associate Secretary of the Board. [FR Doc. 98–31904 Filed 11-25-98; 11:06 am] BILLING CODE 6210–01–P